PUBLIC NOTICE: RIESEL CITY COUNCIL MEETING
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the City of Riesel, McLennan County, Texas, will hold a REGULAR called meeting on
Tuesday SEPTEMBER 8th, 2020 at 6:30pm at Riesel City Hall, 104 N Hwy 6, to discuss the following matters:

1)

Call meeting to Order

2)

Consent Items: Council Approval of
a. Minutes from Council Meetings on 09/01/20 & 08/11/20
b. Payment of Bills/Payroll & Monthly Financial Reports

3)

Visitor’s Comments: This is an opportunity for visitors to bring any item to the City Council’s attention. Comments limited to 3
minutes per visitor. No deliberation may be held on the matter, except limited to a proposal to put the subject on the agenda for a
subsequent meeting.

4)

Consider and Act regarding approval of a Notice of Joint Election with McLennan County and approval of the Election Day Vote
Centers

5)

Consider and Act regarding the 2019 Financial Audit, prepared by William Grimsley, who was subcontracted by appointed auditor,
Alton Thiele

6)

Consider and Act regarding possibly updating water rates

7)

Discussion and possible action regarding installing GPS trackers on all city vehicles

8)

CONVENE into Closed Session: Time _________

9)

Executive Session: A closed meeting will be held pursuant to Section 551.074 of the Government Code (V.C.T.A.) for the City
Council to deliberate the duties, evaluation, employment, and/or appointment of a public officer or employee:
Police Sergeant and Acting Chief, Ryan Dieterich (annual evaluation)

10)

RECONVENE into OPEN Session: Time _________

11)

Discussion and possible action pertaining to subject of Executive Session, Ryan Dieterich’s, annual evaluation

12)

Reports:
a.

Utility Report

b. Police Report

c. Secretary’s Report

Discussion and possible directives to staff on data compilations, research, ordinances, regulations or policies that the members of the
Council desire to be compiled or drafted for review by the Council at a subsequent meeting.
14) Discussion and possible action on ordinance violations and ordinance enforcement, including regarding weed and rubbish regulations,
substandard building regulations, animal regulations, and health and safety regulations
13)

Adjourn Meeting
I hereby certify that this notice was placed at its present location at least 72 hours prior to the above meeting time.
Posted on 09/03 2020 at 3:30 PM.

Alisha Lee Flanary
___________________________________

Alisha Flanary, City Secretary, City of Riesel

AUGUST 11th, 2020

CITY OF RIESEL

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

BE IT REMEMBERED that on Tuesday, AUGUST 11th, 2020, the Riesel City Council met in a REGULAR called meeting, at 6:30 p.m. in
the Riesel City Hall Meeting Room, at 104 Hwy. 6 North in Riesel, Texas, with notice of said meeting having been posted at least 72
hours in advance in accordance with Section 551, Texas Government Code.
Call to Order: Mayor Kevin Hogg called the meeting to order at 6:34 PM
Council Members Present: Marshall Shaw, Jeanne Lehrmann, Phyllis Koester, Jeff Tanner & Bobby Dieterich
Employees Present: Alisha Flanary, Ryan Dieterich Visitors Present: Linda Hogg, David Hall, Cheryl Hall & Scott Winton
Consent Items: Phyllis Koester moved to approve minutes from 07/14/20 & 07/28/20. Jeanne Lehrmann seconded the motion, which
carried unanimously. Jeanne Lehrmann moved to approve payment of bills, payroll and the monthly financial reports. Phyllis Koester
seconded the motion, which carried unanimously.
Visitor’s Comments: Scott Winton introduced himself to Council as a City Planner and offered his services as a Town Coach. He offers
classes and helps manage projects and come up with comprehensive plans.
Variance: Jeanne Lehrmann moved to grant a variance of platting requirements for Cheryl Hall’s property at 204 N. Fairpark as long as it is
kept as rental property. Jeff Tanner seconded the motion, which carried unanimously.
Budget Hearing: Mayor Hogg opened a public hearing at 6:56 PM to hear public opinion on the proposed 2020-21 Operating Budget.
Secretary Flanary gave a brief overview of the budget and had some discussion with Council regarding the proposed budget and there were
no public comments. Mayor Hogg closed the public hearing at 7:06 PM
Tax Rate Hearing: Mayor Hogg opened a public hearing at 7:06 PM to hear public opinion on a proposed tax rate to fund the 2020-21
Operating Budget. There were no public comments, but Secretary Flanary explained the new terminology for the effective rate, which is now
called the no-new-revenue rate and the rollback rate, which is now called the voter approval rate. Mayor Hogg closed the tax rate hearing at
7:14 PM.
Election: Jeanne Lehrmann moved to approve an agreement to conduct a joint election with McLennan County and a contract for election
services. Phyllis Koester seconded the motion, which carried unanimously.
Budget: After budget discussion, Phyllis Koester moved to table further budget discussion until the next meeting and to set the date for that
meeting 9/1/2020. Jeanne Lehrmann seconded the motion, which carried unanimously.
Tax Rate: Marshall shaw moved to officially propose the voter approval tax rate of .287022 per $100 property value and to set a date for a
final tax rate hearing on September 1st, 2020 at 6:30 PM at Riesel City Hall. Phyllis Koester seconded the motion, which carried unanimously.
9-1-1 Board: Phyllis Koester moved to cast a City of Riesel vote for Mr. Hlavenka in the runoff election for McLennan County 911 Board of
Directors. Jeanne Lerhmann seconded the motion, which carried unanimously.
Playground: Jeanne Lehrmann moved to table the decision to purchase playground equipment until further quotes could be obtained.
Marshall Shaw seconded the motion, which carried unanimously.
GPS Trackers: Discussion was held regarding putting GPS tracking devices on all City vehicles. Jeanne Lehrmann moved to table this
discussion and to look into the cost of the devices. Marshall Shaw seconded the motion, which carried unanimously.
Reports: Written reports were submitted to Council from the Police Department, Utility Department and the City Secretary.
Adjourn: With no further business and with no objections, Mayor Hogg, adjourned the meeting at 8:06 PM.

______________________________
Mayor, Kevin Hogg

_________________________________
Attest: Alisha Flanary, City Secretary

SEPTEMBER 1ST, 2020

CITY OF RIESEL

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES

BE IT REMEMBERED that on Tuesday, SEPTEMBER 1ST, 2020, the Riesel City Council met in a SPECIAL called meeting, at
6:30 p.m. in the Riesel City Hall Meeting Room, at 104 Hwy. 6 North in Riesel, Texas, with notice of said meeting having
been posted at least 72 hours in advance in accordance with Section 551, Texas Government Code.
Call to Order: Mayor Kevin Hogg called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM
Council Members Present: Jeanne Lehrmann, Bobby Dieterich, Phyllis Koester, Jeff Tanner & Marshall Shaw
Employees Present: Alisha Flanary Visitors Present: None
Budget Hearing: At 6:30 PM the Mayor opened the floor to hear public opinion on the proposed 2020-21 Operating
Budget. There were no visitors present to make comments, but Councilman Dieterich asked about funding for a
fourth officer, which is not budgeted at this time. With no further comments, Mayor Hogg closed the hearing at 6:33
PM.
Tax Hearing: At 6:33 PM the Mayor opened the floor to hear public opinion on the proposed 2020-21 tax rate. With
no visitors present and no other comments, Mayor Hogg closed the hearing at 6:34 PM.
Budget: Upon a motion by Jeanne Lehrmann and a second by Phyllis Koester, the Council voted five (5) for and none
(0) opposed to adopt Ordinance #2020-04, approving the Fiscal Year 2020-21 Operating Budget. The motion carried
unanimously.
Tax Rate/Levy: Upon a motion by Bobby Dieterich and a second by Jeanne Lehrmann, the Council voted five (5) for
and none (0) opposed that the tax rate be increased by the adoption of a tax rate of $0.287022, which is effectively a
4.18 percent increase in the tax rate and to adopt Ordinance #2020-05 setting and levying the tax rate for Fiscal Year
2020-21. The motion carried unanimously.
Election Cancellation: Jeanne Lehrmann moved to approve Resolution #20200901, a Certificate of Unopposed
General Election and an Order to Cancel the Unopposed Election, noting that the Special Election to reauthorize the
street tax will still be held jointly with McLennan County. Marshall Shaw seconded the motion, which carried
unanimously.

Adjourn: With no further business and with no objections, Mayor Hogg, adjourned the meeting at 6:48 PM.
______________________________
Mayor, Kevin Hogg

_________________________________
Attest: Alisha Flanary, City Secretary

NOTICE OF JOINT GENERAL AND SPECIAL ELECTIONS
(AVISO DE ELECCIONES CONJUNTAS GENERALES Y ESPECIALES
To the registered voters of the County of McLennan, Texas:
(A los votantes registrados del Condado de McLennan, Texas:)
Notice is hereby given that the polling places listed below will be open from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m., November 3, 2020, for voting in
the Joint General and Special Elections:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

to elect Presidential Electors, Members of Congress, Members of the Legislature, State, District and County officers in
McLennan County;
to elect one (1) person for each position to serve the full term of two (2) years for three (3) City Council positions (SMD 3,
SMD 4 and At-Large) for the City of Bellmead;
to elect one (1) person for each position to serve the full term of two (2) years for three (3) positions for City Council for the
City of Bruceville-Eddy;
for voting in a Special Election to elect one (1) person for the unexpired term of office for City Council for the City of
Bruceville-Eddy;
to elect one (1) person for each position to serve the full term of two (2) years for Mayor and two (2) City Council positions
for the City of Gholson;
to elect one (1) person for each position to serve the full term of two (2) years for three (3) City Council positions (Ward 1,
Place 2; Ward 2, Place 2 and Ward 3, Place 2) for City Council for the City of Hewitt:
for voting in a Special Election to elect one (1) person for the unexpired term of office for one (1) City Council position
(Ward 2, Place 1) for the City of Hewitt;
to elect one (1) person for each position to serve the full term of two (2) years for three (3) City Council positions for the City
of Mart;
to elect one (1) person for each position to serve the full term of two (2) years for one (1) City Council position (Ward 4) for
the City of McGregor;
for voting in a Special Election for the Reauthorization of Street Tax for the City of Riesel;
to elect one (1) person for each position to serve the full term of two (2) years for Mayor and two (2) City Council positions
(SMD I, SMD III) for the City of Waco;
for voting in a Special Election to elect one (1) person for each position to serve the unexpired term of office for the City
Council position (SMD IV) for the City of Waco;
to elect one (1) person for each position to serve the full term of two (2) years for three (3) City Council positions for the City
of West;
to elect one (1) person for each position to serve the full term of four (4) years for one (1) position (Place 4) on the Board of
Trustees for the Bruceville-Eddy Independent School District;
to elect one (1) person for each position to serve the full term of three (3) years for two (2) positions on the Board of Trustees
for the Crawford Independent School District;
to elect one (1) person for each position to serve the full term of two (3) years for three (2) positions (Place 3 and Place 4) on
the Board of Trustees for the Connally Independent School District;
for voting in a Special Election to elect one (1) person for the unexpired term of office on the Board of Trustees for the
Hallsburg Independent School District;
to elect one (1) person for each position to serve the full term of three (3) years for two (2) positions (Place I and Place II) on
the Board of Trustees for the Midway Independent School District;
to elect one (1) person for each position to serve the full term of four (4) years for three (3) positions on the Board of Trustees
for the Oglesby Independent School District;
to elect one (1) person for each position to serve the full term of three (3) years for two (2) positions on the Board of Trustees
for the Valley Mills Independent School District;
to elect one (1) person for each position to serve the full term of three (3) years for two (2) positions (SMD 3, Place 3 and AtLarge, Place 7) on the Board of Trustees for the Waco Independent School District;
for voting in a Special Election to elect one (1) person for each position to serve the unexpired term for one (1) At-Large
position (Place 6) on the Board of Trustees for the Waco Independent School District.

The execution of a Joint Election Agreement with Bellmead, Bruceville-Eddy, Gholson, Hewitt, Mart, McGregor, Riesel, Waco,
West, Bruceville-Eddy ISD, Connally ISD, Crawford ISD, Hallsburg ISD, Midway ISD, Oglesby ISD, Valley Mills ISD and Waco
ISD is hereby authorized and approved.

(Notifíquese por la presente que los lugares electorales indicados abajo estarán abiertos desde las 7 de la mañana hasta las 7 de la tarde
del 3 de noviembre 2020 para la votación en elecciones conjuntas generales y especiales:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

para elegir los electores presidenciales, los miembros del congreso, los miembros de la legislatura, los oficiales del estado, los
oficiales del distrito y los oficiales del Condado de McLennan;
para elegir uno (1) persona para que sirvan los termino completos de dos (2) años para las tres (3) posiciones (SMD 3, SMD
4 y en general) del consejo para la ciudad de Bellmead;
para elegir uno (1) persona para que sirvan los termino completos de dos (2) años para las tres (3) posiciones del consejo para
la ciudad de Bruceville-Eddy;
para votar en una elección especial para elegir uno (1) persona para que sirvan los término no vencido para la uno (1)
posición del consejo para la ciudad de Bruceville-Eddy;
para votar en una elección general para elegir uno (1) persona para que sirvan los termino completos de alcalde y dos (2) años
para las dos (2) posiciones del consejo para la ciudad de Gholson;
para elegir a uno (1) persona para cada puesto para servir el término completo de dos (2) años por tres (3) puestos del
Consejo de la Ciudad (Ward 1, Lugar 2; Ward 2, Lugar 2 y Ward 3, Lugar 2) para la ciudad de Hewitt;
para votar en una elección especial elegir a uno (1) persona para cada puesto para servir el por término no completo por uno
(1) posición en el Ayuntamiento (Ward 2, Lugar 1) para la ciudad de Hewitt;
para votar en una elección general para elegir uno (1) persona para que sirvan los termino completos de dos (2) años para las
tres (3) posiciones del consejo para la ciudad de Mart;
para votar en una elección general para elegir uno (1) persona para que sirvan los termino completos de dos (2) años para las
uno (1) posicion (Ward 4) del consejo para la ciudad de McGregor;
para votar en una elección special la reautorización para de impuesto de calle para la ciudad de Riesel;
para votar en una elección general para elegir uno (1) persona para que sirvan los termino completos de dos (2) años para las
alcade y dos (2) posiciones (SMD I, SMD III) del consejo para la ciudad de Waco;
para votar en una elección especial para elegir uno (1) persona para que sirvan los término no vencido para la uno (1)
posición (SMD IV) del consejo para la ciudad de Waco;
para votar en una elección general para elegir uno (1) persona para que sirvan los termino completos de dos (2) años para las
tres (3) posiciones del consejo para la ciudad de West;
para elegir uno (1) persona para que sirvan los termino completos de cuatro (4) años para las uno (1) posicion (Lugar 4) de la
junta de regentes del distrito escolar independiente de Bruceville-Eddy;
para votar en una elección general para elegir uno (1) persona para que sirvan los termino completos de tres (3) años para las
dos (2) posiciones (Lugar 3 y Lugar 4) de la junta de regentes del distrito escolar independiente de Connally;
para votar en una elección general para elegir uno (1) persona para que sirvan los termino completos de tres (3) años para las
dos (2) posiciones de la junta de regentes del distrito escolar independiente de Crawford;
para votar en una elección general para elegir uno (1) persona para que sirvan los termino completos de tres (3) años para las
dos (2) posiciones de la junta de regentes del distrito escolar independiente de Crawford;
para votar en una elección especial para elegir uno (1) persona por el término no completo de oficina de la junta de regentes
del distrito escolar independiente de Hallsburg;
para votar en una elección general para elegir uno (1) persona para que sirvan los termino completos de tres (3) años para las
dos (2) posiciones (Lugar I and Lugar II) de la junta de regentes del distrito escolar independiente de Midway;
para votar en una elección general para elegir uno (1) persona para que sirvan los termino completos de cuatro (4) años para
las tres (3) posiciones de la junta de regentes del distrito escolar independiente de Oglesby;
para votar en una elección general para elegir uno (1) persona para que sirvan los termino completos de tres (3) años para las
dos (2) posiciones de la junta de regentes del distrito escolar independiente de Valley Mills;
para votar en una elección general para elegir uno (1) persona para que sirvan los termino completos de tres (3) años para las
dos (2) posiciones (SMD 3, Lugar 3 y en general, Lugar 7) de la junta de regentes del distrito escolar independiente de Waco;
para votar en una elección especial para elegir uno (1) persona para que sirvan los término no vencido para la uno (1)
posición (en general, Lugar 6) en la junta de regentes del distrito escolar independiente de Waco.

Se autoriza y se aprueba la ejecución de un acuerdo común de las elecciones con los distritos escolares de Bellmead, Bruceville-Eddy,
Gholson, Hewitt, Mart, McGregor, Riesel, Waco, West, Bruceville-Eddy ISD, Connally ISD, Crawford ISD, Hallsburg ISD, Midway
ISD, Oglesby ISD, Valley Mills ISD and Waco ISD por los derechos otorgados.)

LOCATION(S) OF POLLING PLACES
(UBICACIONES DE LOS LUGARES ELECTORALES)
See attached List
(Véase la lista adjunta)
Early Voting by personal appearance will be conducted at:
(La votación adelantada en persona se llevará a cabo todos los días en:)
Main Early Voting Site:
(Lugar principal de votación adelantada:)
McLennan County Elections Administration Office
Records Building
214 North 4th Street, Suite 300
Waco, Texas 76701
Branch Early Voting Sites:
(Sucursales de votación adelantada:)
Robinson Community Center
106 W. Lyndale Ave.
Robinson, TX 76706

Waco Multi-Purpose Community Center
1020 Elm Avenue
Waco, Texas 76704

First Assembly of God Church
6701 Bosque Blvd.
Waco, Texas 76710

Hewitt City Hall/Library
200 Patriot Court
Hewitt, Texas 76643

The dates and times of Early Voting are:
(Los días y horas de votación adelantada son:)
Tuesday
(martes)
Wednesday
(miércoles)
Thursday
(jueves)
Friday
(viernes)

October 13, 2020
(13 de octubre de 2020)
October 14, 2020
(14 de octubre de 2020)
October 15, 2020
(15 de octubre de 2020)
October 16, 2020
(16 de octubre de 2020)

8:00 AM - 5:00 PM

Saturday
(sabado)
Sunday
(domingo)

October 17, 2020
(17 de octubre de 2020)
October 18, 2020
(18 de octubre de 2020)

7:00 AM - 7:00 PM

Monday
(lunes)
Tuesday
(martes)
Wednesday
(miércoles)
Thursday
(jueves)
Friday
(viernes)

October 19, 2020
(19 de octubre de 2020)
October 20, 2020
(20 de octubre de 2020)
October 21, 2020
(21 de octubre de 2020)
October 22, 2020
(22 de octubre de 2020)
October 23, 2020
(23 de octubre de 2020)

8:00 AM - 5:00 PM

Saturday
(sabado)
Sunday
(domingo)

October 24, 2020
(24 de octubre de 2020)
October 25, 2020
(25 de octubre de 2020)

7:00 AM - 7:00 PM

8:00 AM - 5:00 PM
8:00 AM - 5:00 PM
8:00 AM - 5:00 PM

1:00 PM – 6:00 PM

8:00 AM - 5:00 PM
8:00 AM - 5:00 PM
8:00 AM - 5:00 PM
8:00 AM - 5:00 PM

1:00 PM – 6:00 PM

Monday
(lunes)
Tuesday
(martes)
Wednesday
(miércoles)
Thursday
(jueves)
Friday
(viernes)

October 26, 2020
(26 de octubre de 2020)
October 27, 2020
(27 de octubre de 2020)
October 28, 2020
(28 de octubre de 2020)
October 29, 2020
(29 de octubre de 2020)
October 30, 2020
(30 de octubre de 2020)

7:00 AM - 7:00 PM
7:00 AM - 7:00 PM
7:00 AM - 7:00 PM
7:00 AM - 7:00 PM
7:00 AM - 7:00 PM

Applications to vote by mail should be mailed to:
(Las solicitudes para poder votar por deben ser enviadas a:)
Kathy E. Van Wolfe
McLennan County Elections Administrator
P.O. Box 2450
Waco, Texas 76703-2450
ballotbymail@co.mclennan.tx.us
Applications for ballot by mail must be received no later than the close of business on October 23, 2020.
(Las solicitudes para votar por correo tendrán que ser recibidas antes del fin del día laboral el 23 de octubre, 2020.)
Issued this the 15th day of September, 2020.
(Emitada el día 15th de Septiembre 2020.)

_________________________________
Scott Felton, McLennan County Judge
(Juez del Condado de McLennan)

_______________________________________
Mayor, City of Bellmead
(alcalde, ciudad de Bellmead)

________________________________________
Mayor, City of Bruceville-Eddy
(alcalde, ciudad de Bruceville-Eddy)

_______________________________________
Mayor, City of Gholson
(alcalde, ciudad de Gholson)

________________________________________
Mayor, City of Hewitt
(alcalde, ciudad de Hewitt)

_______________________________________
Mayor, City of Mart
(alcalde, ciudad de Mart)

________________________________________
Mayor, City of McGregor
(alcalde, ciudad de McGregor)

_______________________________________
Mayor, City of Riesel
(alcalde, ciudad de Riesel)

________________________________________
Mayor, City of Waco
(alcalde, ciudad de Waco)

_______________________________________
Mayor, City of West
(alcalde, ciudad de West)

_______________________________________
President, Bruceville-Eddy ISD Board of Trustees
(presidente, junta de regentes de Bruceville-Eddy ISD)

________________________________________
President, Connally ISD Board of Trustees
(presidente, junta de regentes de Connally ISD)

_______________________________________
President, Crawford ISD Board of Trustees
(presidente, junta de regentes de Crawford ISD)

________________________________________
President, Hallsburg ISD Board of Trustees
(presidente, junta de regentes de Hallsburg ISD)

_____________________________________
President, Midway ISD Board of Trustees
(presidente, junta de regentes de Midway ISD)

________________________________________
President, Oglesby ISD Board of Trustees
(presidente, junta de regentes de Oglesby ISD)

_____________________________________
President, Valley Mills ISD Board of Trustees
(presidente, junta de regentes de Valley Mills ISD)

_____________________________________
President, Waco ISD Board of Trustees
(presidente, junta de regentes de Waco ISD)
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CITY OF RIESEL, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Riesel’s (the City) financial performance provides
an overview and analysis of the City’s financial activities for the year ended September 30,
2019. Please read it in conjunction with the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 1-2, and
the accompanying basic financial statements.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
•

The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the year by $8,235,533
(net position).

•

During the year, the City had total expenses of $1,812,737 compared to revenues of
$2,345,697, resulting in an increase in its net position by $532,960. Of this amount,
the Charles Street legal settlement was $293,038 ($445,000 gross proceeds less
$151,962 in legal fees).

•

The City’s investment in capital assets totaled $4,355,086 net of accumulated
depreciation of $2,312,889.

•

Total debt of $1,097,000 was reduced by principal payments of $39,000 during the
year.

Overview of the Financial Statements
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic
financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements are comprised of three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3)
notes to the financial statements. This report also contains supplementary information in
addition to the basic financial statements themselves.
Government-Wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide the readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner
similar to a private-sector business.
The statement of net position presents information on all the City’s assets, and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in the City’s net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether its financial
health is improving or deteriorating.
The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed
during the year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash
flows in future periods. This may include uncollected taxes and other revenue or expenses
that are appropriate for the current year even though cash is not received or expended until
the following year.
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The government-wide financial statements distinguish between functions of the City that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (government activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their cost through
user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities include general
government, judicial, law enforcement, and public works. The business-type activities
include water, sewer, and sanitation.
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 9-10 of this report.
Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to
maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.
The City like other state and local governments uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City
can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.
Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on
near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a
government’s near-term financing requirements.
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the
government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and
the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate the comparison between government funds and
governmental activities.
The City maintains one governmental fund, the General Fund. The basic governmental fund
financial statements can be found on pages 11-14 of this report.
Proprietary Funds. The only type of proprietary fund of the City is the Enterprise Fund.
This fund is used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The City uses the enterprise fund
to account for the separate detail of its water and sewer funds.
The proprietary financial statements can be found on pages 15-17 of this report.
Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide narrative explanations or additional
data needed for full disclosure in the government-wide statements and the fund financial
statements. These can be found starting on page 18.
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CITY OF RIESEL, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Net Position. The City’s assets exceed liabilities by $8,235,533 as of September 30, 2019. A
large portion (40%) of the City’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets less any
related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital
assets to provide services to its citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
(See Table I).
Table I
NET POSITION
Total
Governmental

Business-type

Primary

Activities

Activities

Government

2019
Current and other assets

2018

2019

2018

2019

2018

$ 4,213,653 $ 3,614,168 $ 2,138,503 $ 2,160,776 $ 6,352,156 $ 5,774,944

Capital assets, net

662,888

717,086

3,692,198

3,821,569

4,355,086

4,538,655

Total assets

4,876,541

4,331,254

5,830,701

5,982,345

10,707,242

10,313,599

28,155

16,769

5,258

3,296

33,413

20,065

28,155

16,769

5,258

3,296

33,413

20,065

94,905

124,236

1,166,586

1,197,279

1,261,491

1,321,515

Noncurrent liabilities

159,506

144,037

1,084,125

1,161,461

1,243,631

1,305,498

Total liabilities

254,411

268,273

2,250,711

2,358,740

2,505,122

2,627,013

-

3,466

-

612

-

4,078

-

3,466

-

612

-

4,078

662,888

717,086

2,595,198

2,685,569

3,258,086

3,402,655

291,648

252,905

-

-

291,648

252,905

Public safety

4,435

4,335

-

-

4,435

4,335

Debt service

29,126

3,520

151,375

146,123

180,501

149,643

3,662,188

3,098,438

838,675

794,597

4,500,863

3,893,035

Deferred outflows of resources
Total deferred outflows of resources
Current liabilities

Deferred outflows of resources
Total deferred outflows of resources
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Court funds

Unrestricted
Total net position

$ 4,650,285 $ 4,076,284 $ 3,585,248 $ 3,626,289 $ 8,235,533 $ 7,702,573
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CITY OF RIESEL, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
A portion of the City’s net position represents resources that are subject to external and
internal restrictions and on how they may be used. The remaining balance of the unrestricted
net position may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to its citizens.
Changes in Net Position. Revenues totaled $2,345,697 for the year, an increase of $454,126
from the prior year. The legal settlement proceeds were the primary cause of the increase.
Expenses totaled $1,812,737 for the year, an increase of $212,426. This increase was
primarily the result of legal expense related to the settlement referred to in the previous
sentence. (See Table II)

Table II
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Total
Governmental

Business-type

Primary

Activities

Activities

Government

2019

2018

2019

2018

2019

2018

Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for services

$

784,572

$

776,584

$

583,321

$

620,945 $

1,367,893 $

1,397,529

General Revenues:
Property tax

213,084

210,822

-

-

213,084

210,822

Sales tax

105,469

88,392

-

-

105,469

88,392

Franchise and other taxes

56,135

53,554

-

-

56,135

53,554

Payment in lieu of taxes

125,000

125,000

-

-

125,000

125,000

Other income

465,309

10,230

12,807

6,044

478,116

16,274

1,749,569

1,264,582

596,128

626,989

2,345,697

1,891,571

General government

382,811

271,669

-

-

382,811

271,669

Public safety

560,851

556,903

-

-

560,851

556,903

Public works

231,906

136,749

-

-

231,906

136,749

Interest

-

-

46,144

47,833

46,144

47,833

Transfers

-

-

-

-

-

-

Water and Sewer

-

-

591,025

587,157

591,025

587,157

1,175,568

965,321

637,169

634,990

1,812,737

1,600,311

Total revenues
Expenses:

Total Expenses

Change in position
Net position - beginning, as restated
Net position – ending

$

574,001

299,261

4,076,284

3,777,023

4,650,285

$

4,076,284

6

(41,041)
3,626,289
$

3,585,248

$

(8,001)

532,960

291,260

3,634,290

7,702,573

7,411,313

3,626,289 $

8,235,533 $

7,702,573

CITY OF RIESEL, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS
Governmental Funds. The focus of the City’s governmental fund is to provide information
on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is
useful in accessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned and assigned
fund balances may serve as a useful measure of the City’s net resources available for
spending at the end of the fiscal year.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 54 requires fund
balances to be classified as follows:
Nonspendable – Amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in a
spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
Restricted – Amounts with restrictions that are externally imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
Committed – Amounts that can only be used for specific purposes and imposed by
formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making authority. In
the case of the City it is the City Council and the formal action would be an
ordinance to modify or rescind the commitment.
Assigned – Amounts constrained by City management’s intent to be used for
specific purposes but are not formally restricted by external resources or
committed by City Council.
Unassigned – Amount of the remaining fund balance not in any of the other
classifications.
As the City completed the year, its general fund (as presented in the balance sheet on page
11) reported a total fund balance of $4,099,563 (an increase from prior year of $622,250).
This increase was largely due to the legal settlement proceeds and excess revenues over
expenses.
General Fund Budget Highlights. Actual revenues were $67,581 higher than the budget.
Actual expenditures were $209,669 lower than the budget, reflecting a favorable variance of
$277,250 in excess revenues over expenditures. A favorable, $345,000 variance in other
financing sources from legal settlement proceeds, off-set partially by fund appropriations,
created an overall favorable budget variance of $622,250. The budget is presented in the
required supplemental information section on page 42.
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CITY OF RIESEL, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets
At September 30, 2019, the City had invested $4,355,086 in capital assets (net of
accumulated depreciation of $2,312,889), including equipment and land. Major additions
were ongoing utility system improvements, public safety and general government equipment
and street improvements.
More detailed information about the City’s capital assets is presented in the Notes to the
Financial Statements starting on page 27.

Debt
At year-end, the City had $1,097,000 in total debt. This represents a decrease of $39,000
from principal payments made during the year. More detailed information about the City’s
long-term debt is presented in the Notes to the Financial Statements starting on page 28.
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES
The City’s officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2020 budget and tax
rates. Some of those factors include the economy and the anticipated needs of the City for
operations and capital outlay in the next year.
The City adopted a $1,447,955 general fund budget for fiscal year 2019-2020, reflecting a
balanced budget. It will be funded primarily through property, sales and franchise taxes, and
court fines.
If the City does not incur any unforeseen expenditures or reductions in revenue, the City’s
management is confident they will accomplish the task of providing improved services
within its available resources.
CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all
those with an interest therein. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the City’s business office
at: City of Riesel, 104 Hwy 6 North, Riesel, Texas 76682.
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CITY OF RIESEL, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2019
Primary Government

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Due from other funds
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

$

$

3,110,055
65,103
29,675
1,008,820
662,888

Total assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
Total deferred outflows of resources

Total

1,818,509
227,843
92,151
3,692,198

$ 4,928,564
292,946
121,826
1,008,820
4,355,086

4,876,541

5,830,701

10,707,242

28,155
28,155

5,258
5,258

33,413
33,413

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued interest
Customer deposits
Due to the state-sales tax overpayment
Due to other funds
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

84,140
1,356
9,409
-

32,162
218
7,461
76,925
1,008,820

116,302
1,574
7,461
76,925
9,409
1,008,820

159,506

41,000
1,084,125

41,000
1,243,631

Total liabilities

254,411

2,250,711

2,505,122

-

-

-

662,888

2,595,198

3,258,086

29,126
291,648
4,435
3,662,188

151,375
838,675

180,501
291,648
4,435
4,500,863

3,585,248

$ 8,235,533

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts
Total deferred inflows of resources
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Debt service
Municipal court funds
Public safety
Unrestricted
Total net position

$

4,650,285

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF RIESEL, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019
Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
Primary Government

Program Revenues

Functions/Programs

Expenses

Charges for
Services

Operating
Grants and
Contributions

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

$

$

$

$

Primary Government:
Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Total governmental activities

$ 382,811
560,851
231,906
1,175,568

Business-type activities:
Water
Sewer
Total business-type activities

494,852
142,317
637,169

457,242
126,079
583,321

$ 1,812,737

$ 1,367,893

Total primary government

618
783,954
784,572

-

$

(382,193)
223,103
(231,906)
(390,996)

-

-

General revenues:
Property taxes
Sales tax
Franchise and other taxes
Interest earned
Other income
Payment in lieu of taxes
Legal settlement
Gain on asset disposal
Total general revenues
Changes in position
Net position - beginning of year
$

$

(382,193)
223,103
(231,906)
(390,996)

(37,610)
(16,238)
(53,848)

(390,996)

(53,848)

(444,844)

213,084
105,469
56,135
9,383
10,926
125,000
445,000
964,997
574,001

6,628
6,179
12,807
(41,041)

213,084
105,469
56,135
16,011
10,926
125,000
445,000
6,179
977,804
532,960

4,650,285

3,626,289
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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-

(37,610)
(16,238)
(53,848)

4,076,284

Net position - end of year

Total

3,585,248

7,702,573
$

8,235,533

CITY OF RIESEL, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2019

General
ASSETS
Cash
Investments
Receivables
Due from other funds
Total assets

$

$

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Due to the state-sales tax overpayment
Total liabilities

$

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue:
Property taxes
Total deferred inflow of resources
FUND BALANCE
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned
Total fund balance
Total liabilities, deferred inflow of resources
and fund balance

$

3,110,055
65,103
29,675
1,008,820
4,213,653

$

84,140
1,356
9,409
94,905

$

$

3,110,055
65,103
29,675
1,008,820
4,213,653

84,140
1,356
9,409
94,905

19,185
19,185

19,185
19,185

319,340
250,264
3,529,959
4,099,563

319,340
250,264
3,529,959
4,099,563

4,213,653

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Total
Governmental
Funds

$

4,213,653

CITY OF RIESEL, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2019

Total fund balance – governmental funds (page 11)

$ 4,099,563

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the fund. These
assets consist of:
Land
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Infrastructure
Accumulated depreciation
Net Capital Assets

$

24,603
109,090
110,412
140,932
706,938
(429,087)
662,888

Some revenues in the governmental fund are recorded as deferred inflow
of resources because they are not collected within the prescribed
time period (60 days) after yearend, and are therefore unavailable
resources. On the accrual basis, however, those revenues would be
recognized, regardless of when they are collected.

19,185

Certain pension and OPEB contributions and changes in pension plan net
position are reported as deferred outflows of resources in the statement of
net position, but are reported as expenses in the governmental funds.

28,155

Some assets and liabilities are not considered resources available
or due in the current period and therefore are not reported in the
governmental fund. These consist of:
Net pension liability
OPEB liability
Total

(143,511)
(15,995)
(159,506)

Net position of governmental activities (page 9)

$ 4,650,285

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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CITY OF RIESEL, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended
September 30, 2019
General
REVENUE
Property tax
Sales taxes
Franchise and other taxes
Fines
Payment in lieu of taxes
Charges for services
Interest earned
Other income
Total revenue

$

EXPENDITURES
General government
Public safety
Public works
Capital outlays
Total expenditures

206,519
105,469
56,135
783,954
125,000
618
9,383
10,926
1,298,004

Total
Governmental
Funds
$

206,519
105,469
56,135
783,954
125,000
618
9,383
10,926
1,298,004

355,494
540,356
194,758
30,146
1,120,754

355,494
540,356
194,758
30,146
1,120,754

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

177,250

177,250

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from legal settlement
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

445,000
445,000

445,000
445,000

EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES

622,250

622,250

3,477,313

3,477,313

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

$ 4,099,563

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
13

$

4,099,563

CITY OF RIESEL, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Net change in fund balances – total governmental funds (page 13)

$

622,250

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities are different because:
Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are reported as deferred inflow of resources in the
governmental fund. This is the net change from the previous period.

6,565

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets
is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays
exceeded depreciation in the current period.

(54,198)

Pension-related and other post employment benefit expenses do not require
the use of current resources, and therefore are not reported in the fund
statements. This is the amount by which pension related expenses exceeded
current year contributions.
Change in net position of governmental activities (page 10)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
14

(616)

$

574,001

CITY OF RIESEL, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended September 30, 2019
Business-Type Activities-Enterprise Funds
Water
Sewer
Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

$

Total assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
Deferred outflows of resources related to other post
employment benefits
Total deferred outflows of resources
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued interest
Customer deposits
Due to other funds
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total liabilities

1,313,291
162,899
81,497
3,138,750

$

505,218
64,944
10,654
553,448

$

1,818,509
227,843
92,151
3,692,198

4,696,437

1,134,264

5,830,701

2,597

2,597

5,194

32

32

64

2,629

2,629

5,258

30,578
109
2,647
51,283
463,287

1,584
109
4,814
25,642
545,533

32,162
218
7,461
76,925
1,008,820

20,000
649,563

21,000
434,562

41,000
1,084,125

1,217,467

1,033,244

2,250,711

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts

-

-

-

Total deferred outflows of resources

-

-

-

111,948

2,595,198

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Debt service
Unrestricted
Total net position

2,483,250
72,783
925,566
$

3,481,599

78,592
(86,891)
$

103,649

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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151,375
838,675
$

3,585,248

CITY OF RIESEL, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND
Year Ended September 30, 2019

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds
Water
Sewer
Total
OPERATING REVENUE
Charges for services:
Water service
Sewer service
Sanitation service
Reconnect and connection fees
Miscellaneous
Total Operating Revenue

$

335,333
102,663
11,950
7,296
457,242

$

126,079
126,079

$

335,333
126,079
102,663
11,950
7,296
583,321

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salary, wages and payroll taxes
Employee benefits
Sanitation expense
Water purchased
Repairs and maintenance
Insurance
Utilities
Professional and technical expense
Supplies
Depreciation
Other
Total Operating Expenses

28,787
6,178
93,725
60,884
5,033
8,864
25,340
47,075
20,574
160,330
11,752
468,542

OPERATING GAIN (LOSS)

(11,300)

3,596

(7,704)

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Interest income
Gain or (loss) on disposal of assets
Interest expense
Total Non-operating Revenue (Expense)

4,746
6,179
(26,310)
(15,385)

1,882
(19,834)
(17,952)

6,628
6,179
(46,144)
(33,337)

(26,685)
3,508,284
3,481,599

(14,356)
118,005
103,649

(41,041)
3,626,289
3,585,248

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Net Position - beginning of year, as restated
Net Position - end of year

$

28,788
5,084
12,453
12,368
11,155
3,787
46,097
2,751
122,483

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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57,575
11,262
93,725
60,884
17,486
8,864
37,708
58,230
24,361
206,427
14,503
591,025

$

CITY OF RIESEL, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended September 30, 2019

Water
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to suppliers
Cash payments to employees
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

$

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds
Sewer
Total

445,047
(267,024)
(28,787)
149,236

$

125,821
(46,053)
(28,788)
50,980

$

570,868
(313,077)
(57,575)
200,216

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities
Increase in due to other funds
Net Cash (Used) by Non-Capital Financing Activities

(28,480)
(28,480)

(47,286)
(47,286)

(75,766)
(75,766)

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of assets
Payments on long-term debt
Interest payments
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities

(51,026)
4,575
(19,000)
(26,415)
(91,866)

(26,030)
(20,000)
(20,028)
(66,058)

(77,056)
4,575
(39,000)
(46,443)
(157,924)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest received
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

4,746
4,746

1,502
1,502

6,248
6,248

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

33,636

(60,862)

(27,226)

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Operating gain (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income / (loss)
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in inventory
(Increase) decrease in pension deferrals
(Increase) decrease in other post employment benefits deferrals
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability
Increase (decrease) in other post employment benefits liability
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflow of resources
Total adjustments
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

1,279,655
$

$

1,313,291

(11,300)

566,080
505,218

$

$

3,596

$

160,330
(9,880)
4,798
(1,081)
100
(105)
1,346
(13)
7,662
(2,315)
(306)
160,536
$

149,236

46,097
227
2,181
(1,081)
100
(193)
1,346
(13)
(1,005)
31
(306)
47,384
$

50,980

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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1,845,735

$

1,818,509

(7,704)

206,427
(9,653)
6,979
(2,162)
200
(298)
2,692
(26)
6,657
(2,284)
(612)
207,920
$

200,216

CITY OF RIESEL, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2019

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies of the City of Riesel (the City) conform to generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) in the United States of America, applicable to state and local governments. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standards-setting body for
established governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the
City’s policies are described below.
A. REPORTING ENTITY
The City is a general law city in McLennan County, Texas which operates under a council-mayor
form of government and provides such services as public safety, street maintenance, water and
sanitation, public improvements, planning and zoning, judicial, general administrative and other
services as are authorized by its code of ordinances and its citizens.
In evaluating the City’s financial reporting entity, management has considered all potential
component units. The decision to include potential component units was made as set forth in
GASB Statement No. 61. In accordance with this standard, a financial reporting entity consists of the
primary government and its component units. Component units are legally separate entities for which
the elected officials of the City are financially accountable, or the relationship to the City is such that
exclusion would cause the City’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Although
blended component units are legally separate entities, they function as a part of the government and
have their data blended with the primary government. Any discretely presented component units, on
the other hand, are reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements.
The criteria used to determine whether an organization is a component unit of the City and whether it
is discretely presented or blended includes: whether the City appoints a voting majority of the
organizations board and has the ability to impose its will on the component unit, or a financial benefit
or burden relationship exits, whether the component unit is fiscally dependent, whether the
component unit has substantively the same governing body as the primary government or
management of the primary government has operational responsibility for the activities of the
component unit; and whether services are provided entirely or almost entirely to the primary
government.
The City reports the following blended component units:
Riesel Education Facilities Corporation (REFC) is Texas non-profit corporation created to provide
an avenue for financing to organizations for the construction of educational related projects. The
bonds issued do not constitute a debt or a pledge of faith or credit by REFC or the City but are
payable by the user pursuant to terms defined in the applicable loan agreement underlying each issue.
Any potential debt issue has to be approved by the City Council. There was no activity to report for
the year ended September 30, 2019.
Riesel Cultural Facilities Corporation (RCFC) is a Texas non-profit corporation created to provide
an avenue for financing to organizations for the preservation, education and development of cultural
facilities. The bonds issued do not constitute a debt or pledge of faith or credit by RCFC or the City
but are payable by the user pursuant to terms defined in the applicable loan agreement underlying
each issue. Any potential debt issue has to be approved by the City Council. There was no activity to
report for the year ended September 30, 2019.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
A. REPORTING ENTITY (Continued)
Riesel Health Facilities Development Corporation (RHFDC) is a Texas non-profit corporation
created to provide an avenue for financing to organizations for the maintenance and development of
health facilities. The bonds issued do not constitute a debt or a pledge of faith or credit by the
RHFDC or the City but are payable by the user pursuant to terms defined in the applicable loan
agreement underlying each issue. Any potential debt issue has to be approved by the City Council.
There was no activity to report for the year ended September 30, 2019.
B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the City. As a general rule, the
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with
a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
Fund Financial Statements
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds.
The City reports the following major governmental fund:
General Fund-The general fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It is used to account for all
financial resources of the general government except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.
The City reports the following major proprietary fund:
Water Fund-The water fund accounts for the activities of the water distribution system and solid
waste collections
Sewer Fund-The sewer fund accounts for the activities of the sewage treatment plant, sewage
stations and collection systems.
Governmental funds report as program revenues 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues
of the enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the
enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating
revenues and expenses.
C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they
are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of
the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred,
as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.
Sales taxes, franchise taxes, fines, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. All other governmental fund revenues are considered to be measurable and available only
when cash is received by the City. Property taxes receivable not determined to be available to finance
current period obligations are recorded and deferred in the fund statements.
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use it is the City’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION
a. Cash and Cash Equivalents
The City’s cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statements of net position and the
statement of cash flows of the proprietary fund consist of cash on hand and money market
accounts which are available for immediate withdrawal.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION (Continued)
b.

Accounts Receivables
Receivables include amounts due from customers for water, sewer and sanitation services in the
proprietary fund. In the governmental funds, receivables include primarily property tax, sales tax,
franchise fees and fines. All receivables are current and therefore due within one year. Activities
between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end
of the fiscal year are referred to as “due to/from other funds”.

c. Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include land, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment,
infrastructure, and water and sewer facilities are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. The City has
elected not to report major general infrastructure assets retroactively as permitted by GASB
Statement No. 34 for smaller governments. The City will report newly acquired or constructed
general infrastructure assets in the statement of net position in the period they acquire or construct
those assets. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased
or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of
donation.
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets lives are not capitalized.
Capital assets of the City are depreciated using the straight line method over the following
estimated useful lives:
Assets
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Water and sewer system
Infrastructure

Years
10-20
5-30
15-30
15-30

d. Restricted Assets
Certain proceeds of the City’s enterprise fund bonds, as well as certain resources of the City are
set aside primarily for the repayment of its notes and capital lease obligations and accordingly, are
classified as restricted assets on the statement of net position because their use is limited by
applicable covenants.
e. Long-Term Debt
In the government-wide financial statements and in the fund financial statements for proprietary
fund types, long-term debt is reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. In the fund financial
statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts during the current
period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums and
discounts received on debt issuances are also reported as other financing sources or uses. Issuance
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D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION (Continued)
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt services
expenditures.
f. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has the following
items that qualify for reporting in this category:
•
•

Pension and other post-employment benefits (OPEB) contributions after measurement date –
These contributions are deferred and recognized in the following year.
Difference in projected and actual earnings on pension and OPEB investments – The
difference is deferred and amortized over a closed five-year period.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has two items that qualify for
reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue-property taxes, is reported in
the governmental funds balance sheet and other deferred amounts is reported in the statement of net
position. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the periods the
amounts become available.
g. Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
h. Pensions and OPEB
For the purposes of measuring the net pension liability/asset, OPEB liability deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB and pension and OPEB
expense, information about the Fiduciary Net Position of the Texas Municipal Retirement System
(TMRS) TMRS Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF) and additions to/deductions from
TMRS’s Fiduciary Net Position and OPEB liability have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by TMRS. For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized in the period that
compensation is reported to the employee, which is when contributions are legally due. Benefit
payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.
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D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION (Continued)
i. Equity Classifications
In the government-wide financial statements, equity is shown as net position and classified into three
components:
Net investment in capital assets – Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding balance of any bonds, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvements of those assets.
Restricted – Consists of assets with constraints placed on the use either by 1) external groups such as
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; 2) law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are
available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted resources first and then unrestricted resources,
as they are needed.
Unrestricted – All other net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “net investment in
capital assets.”
The City reports governmental fund balances by the five following classifications:
Nonspendable – Amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in a spendable form or
(b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
Restricted – Amounts with restrictions that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors,
or laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.
Committed – Amounts that can only be used for specific purposes and imposed by formal action of
the government’s highest level of decision-making authority. In the case of the City it is the City
Council and the formal action would be an ordinance to modify or rescind the commitment.
Assigned – Amounts constrained by City management’s intent to be used for specific purposes but are
not formally restricted by external resources or committed by City Council.
Unassigned – Amount of the remaining fund balance not in any of the other classifications.
For the classification of fund balances, the City considers restricted amounts to have been spent first
when an expenditure is incurred for the purpose for which restricted and unrestricted fund balance is
available. Expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, followed by committed,
assigned, and lastly unassigned fund balance.
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2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION
The City Council follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the required
supplemental information:
Prior to the end of each fiscal year, the City Secretary submits to the City Council a
proposed budget for the fiscal year beginning on the following October 1. The operating
budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them for the
upcoming year, along with estimates for the current year and actual data from the
preceding year.
Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. Prior to September 30, the
budget is legally enacted through passage by majority vote of the City Council. The
Council may authorize supplemental appropriations during the year.
The final amended budget is used in this report. Unused appropriations lapse at the end of
the year unless carried forward to the next year by Council action. No encumbrances are
recognized or recorded. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures for the
General Fund. See Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund BalanceBudget to Actual-General Fund on page 38.

3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS
A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
The funds of the City must be deposited and invested under the terms of a contract, contents of which
are set out in the Depository Contract Law. The depository bank places approved pledged securities
for safekeeping and trust with the City’s agent bank in an amount sufficient to protect City funds on a
day-to-day basis during the period of the contract. The pledge of approved securities is waived only to
the extent of the depository bank’s dollar amount of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”)
insurance.
At September 30, 2019, the carrying amount of the City’s cash deposits were $4,928,564, and the
bank balances were $4,948,302.
The Public Funds Investment Act (Government Code Chapter 2256) contains specific provisions in
the areas of investment practices, management reports and establishment of appropriate policies.
Among other things, it requires the City to adopt, implement, and publicize an investment policy.
That policy must address the following areas: (1) safety of principal and liquidity, (2) portfolio
diversification, (3) allowable investments, (4) acceptable risk levels, (5) expected rates of return, (6)
maximum allowable stated maturity of portfolio investments, (7) maximum average dollar-weighted
maturity allowed based on the stated maturity date for the portfolio, (8) investment staff quality and
capabilities, (9) and bid solicitation preferences for certificates of deposit. Statutes authorize the City
to invest in (1) obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain U.S. agencies, and the State of Texas; (2)
certificates of deposit, (3) certain municipal securities, (4) money market savings accounts, (5)
repurchase agreements, (6) bankers acceptances, (7) mutual funds (8) investment pools,
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3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Legal and Contractual Provisions Governing Deposits and Investments
(9) guaranteed investment contracts, (10) and common trust funds. The Act also requires the City to
have independent auditors perform test procedures related to investment practices as provided by the
Act. The City is in substantial compliance with the requirements of the Act and with local policies.
As of September 30, 2019, the City’s investments were invested with a local bank. The City
categorizes its fair value measurements within the hierarchy established by generally accepted
accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value
of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are
other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs. As of September 30, 2019, the
City had the following investments:
Carrying
Amount
Primary Government
Certificates of Deposit
Total investments

$
$

292,946
292,946

Fair
Value
$
$

Input
Level

292,946
292,946

Policies Governing Deposits and Investments
In compliance with the Public Funds Investments Act, the City has adopted a deposit and investment
policy. That policy addresses the following risks:
Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits: This is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the City’s deposits
may not be returned to it. The City’s deposits for the year were collateralized with pledged securities
from the City’s depository bank.
Custodial Credit Risk – Investments: This is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. The City’s policy requires investments, other than
investment pools, to be held by a third-party custodian bank. All of the City’s investments were held
by the City’s third-party custodian bank in the City’s name.
Interest Rate Risk: In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its exposure to
declines in fair value by: a) structuring the investment portfolio so that investments mature to meet
cash requirements for ongoing operations, b) investing operating funds primarily in shorter-term
securities, money market mutual funds or government investment pools, and c) diversifying
maturities over time. It is the City’s policy not to invest in securities maturing more than three years
from the date of purchase. Money market mutual funds must have a dollar weighted average stated
maturity of 180 days or less. Finally, the composite portfolio must maintain a weighted average
maturity of 365 days or less.
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3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Other Credit Risk: In compliance with the City’s Investment Policy, as of September 30, 2019, the
City minimized credit risk losses due to a default of a security issuer or backer, by limiting
investments to the safest types of securities; limiting Certificates of Deposit that are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC); limiting the City’s investments to obligations issued,
guaranteed, insured by or backed by the full faith and credit of the United States or its agencies and
instrumentalities; pre-qualifying the financial institutions, broker/dealers, intermediaries, and advisers
with which the City will do business; and diversifying the investment portfolio so that potential losses
on individual securities were minimized.
A reconciliation of cash and investments, as shown in the Statement of Net Position for the City:

Primary
Government

Total
Reporting
Entity

Cash and investments (from previous pages)
Carrying amount of deposits
Carrying amount of investments

$ 4,928,564
292,946

$ 4,928,564
292,946

Total

$ 5,221,510

$ 5,221,510

Statement of Net Position:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

$ 4,928,564
292,946

$ 4,928,564
292,946

Total

$ 5,221,510

$ 5,221,510
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3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
B. CAPITAL ASSETS
Changes in capital assets during the year ended September 30, 2019, were as follows:

Balance
October 1,
2018
Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Infrastructure
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Governmental activities capital assets, net
Business-type Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being appreciated:
Water & sewer system
Buildings and improvements
Machiney and equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Business-type activities capital assets, net

$

24,603
24,603

Additions

$

104,086
93,695
136,757
702,688
1,037,226
(344,743)
692,483
$
717,086

$

$

$

125,247
125,247

4,913,245
7,711
463,563
5,384,519
(1,688,197)
3,696,322
$ 3,821,569
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$

5,004
16,717
4,175
4,250
30,146
(84,344)
(54,198)
(54,198)

5,004
5,004
67,048
77,056
(206,427)
(129,371)
(129,371)

Transfers/
Retirements

Balance
September 30,
2019

$

-

$

-

109,090
110,412
140,932
706,938
1,067,372
(429,087)
638,285
$
662,888

$

$

$

-

(10,822)
(10,822)
10,822
-

$

24,603
24,603

125,247
125,247

4,918,249
12,715
519,789
5,450,753
(1,883,802)
3,566,951
$ 3,692,198
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3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
B. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:
Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Total depreciation expense governmental activities

$ 26,701
20,495
37,148
$ 84,344

Business-type activities:
Water fund
Sewer fund
Total depreciation expense business-type activities

$ 160,330
46,097
$ 206,427

C. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES
Interfund receivable and payable balances are utilized to account for payments made by one fund
on behalf of another fund or deposits received by one fund on behalf of another fund. Following
are the balances at September 30, 2019:
Funds
Due To
Due From
General Fund
$ 1,008,820
$
Water Fund
463,287
Sewer Fund
545,533
Total
$ 1,008,820
$ 1,008,820
Interfund balances consist of lending/borrowing arrangements that result from expenditures that
are paid by one fund and then charged back to the appropriate other fund. Some lending
borrowing may occur between two or more funds.

D. LONG-TERM DEBT
The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions for the year ended September 30, 2019:
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3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
D. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Beginning
Balance
Governmental activities:
Net pension liability
OPEB liability
Governmental activity
long-term liabilities

Additions

Ending
Balance

Retirements

Due Within
One Year

$

127,893
16,144

$

15,618
-

$

(149)

$

143,511
15,995

$

-

$

144,037

$

15,618

$

(149)

$

159,506

$

-

567,000
354,000
215,000
22,832
2,628

$

2,692
-

$

(9,000)
(10,000)
(20,000)
(27)

$

558,000
344,000
195,000
25,524
2,601

$

10,000
11,000
20,000
-

1,161,460

$

2,692

$

(39,027)

$

1,125,125

$

41,000

Business - type activities:
Revenue Bond-Series 2009
$
Certificates of Obligation-Series 1999
Certificates of Obligation-Series 2013
Net pension liability
OPEB liability
Business - type activity
long-term liabilities
$

Long-term debt at September 30, 2019 is comprised of the following:
Governmental
Type
Activities

BusinessType
Activities

Certificates of Obligation and Revenue Bonds:

$637,000 water system Revenue Bonds Series 2009
due in annual installments of $7,000 to $31,000 through 2049;
interest at 4.125%

$

-

$

558,000

$478,000 sewer system Certificate of Obligation Bonds, Series 1999
due in annual installments of $2,000 to $66,000 through
2039; interest at 4.75%

-

344,000

$300,000 water and sewer system Certificate of Obligation Bonds,
Series 2013 due in annual installments of $15,000 to $28,000 through
2028; interest at 2.990%

-

195,000

Total certificates of obligation and revenue bonds

-

1,097,000

143,511
15,995

25,524
2,601

Net pension liability
OPEB liability
Total primary government debt

$

29

159,506

$

1,125,125
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3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
D. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
The annual debt service requirements to maturity for business-type activities are as follows:
Year Ended
September 30,
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025-2029
2030-2034
2035-2039
2040-2044
2045-2049
Total

Principal
41,000
41,000
43,000
43,000
44,000
232,000
173,000
215,000
120,000
145,000
$ 1,097,000

$

Interest
44,982
43,449
41,895
40,274
38,652
166,173
124,816
82,381
42,694
15,365
$
640,681

$

$

$

Total
85,982
84,449
84,895
83,274
82,652
398,173
297,816
297,381
162,694
160,365
1,737,681

The general fund is responsible for liquidating the net pension liability for employees employed in the
corresponding governmental funds.
The City’s bond indentures contain restrictions concerning the maintenance of accounting records,
interest and sinking funds and reserve funds in varying amounts. These amounts are included in the
restricted balances on the accompanying balance sheet and statements of net position.

4. OTHER INFORMATION
A. RISK MANAGEMENT
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City has joined
together with other governments in the State of Texas to form the Texas Municipal League
Intergovernmental Risk Pool (the Pool), a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common
risk management and insurance program for liability, property, and workmen’s compensation
coverage. The City pays a quarterly contribution to the Pool for its insurance coverage. The
agreement for formation of the Pool provides that the Pool will be self-sustaining through member
contributions and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of specific limits.
The City has experienced no significant reductions in coverage through the Pool over the past year.
There have been no insurance settlements exceeding Pool coverage for any of the last three years.
B. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
a.

Water Purchase Agreement

On May 16, 1991 the City entered into a long-term agreement to purchase water from RMS Water
Supply Corporation (RMS), a related party (Note 4(C)). The agreement runs through May 16, 2031.
Under the contract, the City may purchase up to 5,400,000 gallons of water per month. The contract
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4. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
B. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
has been amended several times through the years with a current rate of $1.28 per thousand gallons of
water used along with a fixed charge of $2,986, due monthly.
Per a December 2008 land purchase contract to procure a site for a water well, it was stipulated that
the City pay a royalty to the seller for the water produced and evidenced by a meter at a rate of $0.15
per thousand gallons. This royalty is due monthly and shall be in effect for as long as the City
produces water from the purchased property.
During the year ended September 30, 2019, the City paid $60,884, including royalties, for purchased
water.
b. Litigation and Violations
The City is a party to legal proceedings, many of which occur in the normal course of operations. It is
not possible at the present time to estimate the ultimate outcome or liability, if any, of the city with
respect to the various proceedings.
c. Tax Abatement
The City enters into ad valorem tax abatement agreements with businesses pursuant to its tax
abatement policy and Texas Tax Code Chapter 311, Texas Tax Code Chapter 312, Texas Local
Government Code Chapter 380 and Section 52-a of the State Constitution of Texas. Under its policy,
the City may grant ad valorem tax abatements for the purpose of promotion of high quality
commercial and industrial development in all parts of the City, and an ongoing improvement of the
quality of life of its citizens.
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, the City abated ad valorem taxes totaling $33,623, as
detailed below:
First Year
of
Abatement
2013

Company
Sandy Creek Energy Assoc., LP

2018 Abated Term of Abatement
Value
Abatement Percentage
$ 10,571,122

10 years

Commitment by Recepient
Construct new facility, create on
35% to 98% average 100 jobs.

d. Affiliated Corporations

The City and its affiliated corporations (Riesel Cultural Facilities Corporations, Riesel Education
Facilities Corporation and Riesel Health Facilities Development Corporation) participate in securing
financing mechanisms for various organizations. The City and its affiliated corporations assist these
various organizations in securing financing for their respective construction projects. The City and its
affiliates are not obligated in any manner for the repayment of the notes payable secured by these
organizations. Therefore, the City has not reported any liability in the financial statements for these
loans. The City does receive a fee for participating in the conduit financing. The Corporations do not
have any prepared financial statements and any conduit revenues received are reported in the General
Fund as miscellaneous revenues. For the year ended September 30, 2019, there was no activity and
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no fees received. Additional information regarding these matters can be obtained from the City
Secretary.
C. RELATED PARTIES
During the year ended September 30, 2019, the City conducted business with RMS Water Supply
Corporation, a related party. RMS Water Supply Corporation was incorporated in 1987 as a Texas
non-profit corporation for the purpose of providing water to the City and another area community.
Each community appoints two members of the five-member board and a fifth member is selected at
large. In addition to the contract water purchased as mentioned in Note 4(B)(a), the City performs
administrative and operator services for RMS per a service agreement contract. The City received
$7,296 for services performed under the service agreement contract.
D. PENSION PLAN
Plan Description
The City of Riesel participates as one of the 883 plans in the nontraditional, joint contributory, hybrid
defined benefit pension plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS).
TMRS is an agency defined pension plan administered in accordance with the TMRS act, Subtitle G,
Title 8, Texas Government Code (the TMRS Act) as an agent multiple-employer retirement system
for municipal employees in the State of Texas. The TMRS Act places the general administration and
management of the system with a six-member board of trustees. Although the Governor, with advice
and consent of the Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State of Texas.
TMRS’s defined benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified plan under Section 401 (a) of the Internal
Revenue Code. TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR)
that can be obtained at www.tmrs.com.
All eligible employees of the City are required to participate in TMRS.
Benefits Provided
TMRS provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the
governing body of the City, within the options available in the state statutes governing TMRS.
At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee’s contributions, with interest,
and the city-financed monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity. Members may
choose to receive their retirement benefit in one of seven payment options. Members may also
choose to receive a portion of their benefit as a Partial Lump Sum Distribution in an amount equal to
12, 24 or 36 monthly payments, which cannot exceed 75% of the member’s deposits and interest.
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Plan provisions for the City were as follows:

Employee deposit rate
Matching ratio (City to Employee)
Years required for vesting
Service retirement eligibility
(expressed as age/years of service)
Updated service credit
Annuity increase (to retirees)

Plan Year 2017
5.0%
1 to 1
5

Plan Year 2018
5.0%
1 to 1
5

60/5, 0/20
0.0%
0% of CPI

60/5, 0/20
0.0%
0% of CPI

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms
At the December 31, 2018, valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered
by the benefit terms:
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Active employees
Total

2
7
7
16

Contributions
The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5%, 6% or 7% of employee gross earnings
and the city matching percentages are either 100%, 150% or 200%, both as adopted by the governing
body of the City. Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is
determined annually by the actuary, using the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The
actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of the benefits
earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued
liability.
Employees for the City of Riesel were required to contribute 5% of their annual gross earnings during
the fiscal year. The contribution rates for the City of Riesel were 5.98% and 6.20% in calendar years
2018 and 2017, respectively. The City’s contributions to TMRS for the year ended September 30,
2019, were $21,365 and were equal to the required contributions.
Net Pension Liability
The City’s Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31, 2018, and the Total
Pension Liability (TPL) used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date.
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Actuarial Assumptions:
The Total Pension Liability in the December 31, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:
Inflation
Overall payroll growth
Investment rate of return

2.5% per year
3.0% per year
6.75%, net of pension plan investment expense, including
inflation

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members, retirees
and beneficiaries were based on the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table with
Blue Collar Adjustment, male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103%. For
cities with fewer than twenty employees, more conservative methods and assumptions are used. First,
lower termination rates are used for smaller cities, with maximum multipliers of 75% for employers
with less than 6 members, 85% for employers with 6 to 10 members and 100% for employers with 11
to 15 members, and 115% for employers with less than a 100 members. There is also a load on the
life expectancy for employers with less than 15 active members. The life expectancy will be loaded
by decreasing the mortality rates by 1% for every active member less than 15. For example, an
employer with 5 active members will have the baseline mortality tables multiplied by 90% (10 active
members times 1%). For underfunded plans, the maximum amortization period for amortizing gains
and losses is decreased from current levels by 1 year for each active member less than the 20 member
threshold. For example, an employer with 8 active members and a current maximum amortization
period of 25 will use (25-(20-8)) = 13 year amortization period for the gain or loss in that year’s
valuation. Under this policy, the lowest amortization period will be 25-(20-1) = 6 years. Once the
plan is overfunded, the amortization period will revert back to the standard 25 years. The rates are
projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality improvements.
For disabled annuitants, the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Tables with Blue
Collar Adjustment are used with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103%
with a 3-year set forward for both males and females. In addition, a 3% minimum mortality rate is
applied to reflect the impairment for younger members who become disabled. The rates are projected
on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality improvements subject to the
3% floor.
The actuarial assumptions were developed primarily from the actuarial investigation of the experience
of TMRS over the four year period from December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2014. They were
adopted in 2015 and first used in the December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation. The post-retirement
mortality assumption for healthy annuitants and Annuity Purchase Rates (APRs) are based on the
Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through 2011 and dated December 31, 2013.
In conjunction with these changes first used in the December 31, 2013 valuation, the System adopted
the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and a one-time change to the amortization policy.
Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation as well
as the production of income, in order to satisfy the short-term and long-term funding needs of the
TMRS.

34

CITY OF RIESEL, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2019

4. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)
D. PENSION PLAN (Continued)
After the Asset Allocation Study analysis and experience investigation study, the Board amended the
long term expected rate of return on pension plan investments from 7% to 6.75%. Plan assets are
managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation as well as the
production of income, in order to satisfy the short-term and long-term funding needs of the TMRS.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building –
block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
In determining their best estimate of a recommended investment return assumption under various
alternative asset allocation portfolios, GRS focused on the area between (1) arithmetic mean
(aggressive) without an adjustment for time (conservative) and (2) the geometric mean (conservative)
with an adjustment for time (aggressive). The target allocation and best estimate of real rates of
return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class

Target Allocation

Long-Term Expected Real Rate of Return (Arithmetic)

Domestic Equity

17.5%

4.55%

International Equity

17.5%

6.35%

Core Fixed Income

10.0%

1.00%

Non-Core Fixed Income

20.0%

3.90%

Real Return

10.0%

3.80%

Real Estate

10.0%

4.50%

Absolute Return

10.0%

3.75%

5.0%

7.50%

Private Equity
Total

100.0%

Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be
made at the rates specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net
Position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active
and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the Total Pension Liability.
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Changes in Net Pension Liability
Balance at 12/31/2017
Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest
Change of benefit terms
Difference between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions
Administrative expense
Other changes
Net changes
Balance at 12/31/2018

Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability
Net Position
Liability
(a)
(b)
(a) - (b)
$
449,705 $
298,980 $ 150,725

$

21,473
30,860
(4,458)
(6,518)
41,357
491,062 $

21,433
17,289
(8,973)
(6,518)
(173)
(10)
23,048
322,028 $

21,473
30,860
(4,458)
(21,433)
(17,289)
8,973
173
10
18,309
169,034

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate
The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 6.75% as
well as what the City’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1percentage-point lower (5.75%) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

City's net pension liability

1% Decrease in
Discount Rate (5.75%)
248,859

Discount Rate (6.75%)
169,034

1% Increase in
Discount Rate (7.75%)
104,724

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately issued
TMRS financial report. That report may be obtained on the Internet at www.tmrs.com.
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions
For the year ended September 30, 2019, the City recognized pension expense of $24,960.
At September 30, 2019, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources to pensions from the following sources:
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Deferred
Outflows of Resources
Differences between expected and actual
economic experience
Changes in actuarial assumptions
Differences between projected and actual
investment earnings
Contributions subsequent to the measurement
date
Total deferred outflows of resources, net

$

$

-

Deferred
Inflows of Resources
$

591

1,223

-

15,551

-

16,708
32,891

-

$

The $16,708 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability for the year ending September 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
Net Deferred
Outflows/
(Inflows) of
Resources
2019
$
6,539
2020
2,816
2021
2,227
2022
5,264
2023
(663)
Thereafter
Total
$
16,183

E. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)
Benefit Plan Description
Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) administers a defined benefit group-term life insurance
plan known as the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF). For purposes of reporting under GASB
75, the retiree portion of the SDBF is not considered a cost sharing plan and is instead considered a
single-employer, defined benefit OPEB plan. This is a voluntary program in which participating
member cities may elect, by ordinance, to provide group-term life insurance coverage for their active
members, including retirees. The death benefit for active employees provides a lump sum payment
approximately equal to the employee’s annual salary (calculated based on the employee’s actual
earnings, for the 12-month period preceding the month of death). The death benefit for retirees is
considered an other postemployment benefit (OPEB) and is a fixed amount of $7,500. As the SDBF
covers both active and retiree participants, with no segregation of assets, the SDBF is considered to be
an unfunded OPEB plan (i.e. no assets are accumulated).
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Contributions
The City contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual actuarial
valuation. The rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance. The funding policy
for the SDBF program is to assure that adequate resources are available to meet all death benefit
payments for the upcoming year. The intent is not to pre-fund retiree term life insurance during
employees’ entire careers.
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms
At the December 31, 2018, valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered by
the benefit terms:
Inactive employees currently receiving benefits
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Active employees
Total

2
2
8
12

Total OPEB Liability
The City’s total OPEB liability of $18,597 was measured as of December 31, 2018 and was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of that date.
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Summary of Actuarial Assumptions

Inflation
Salary Increases
Discount Rate*
Retiree's Share of Benefit-Related Costs
Administrative Expenses

2.50%
3.5% to 10.5% including inflation
3.71%
$
All administrative expenses are paid through the
Pension Trust and accounted for under reporting
requirements under GASB Statement No. 68.

Mortality Rates-Service Retirees

RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar
Adjustment with male rates multiplied by 109%
and female rates multiplied by 103% and projected
on a fully generational basis with scale BB.

Mortality Rates-Disabled Retirees

RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar
Adjustment with male rates multiplied by 109%
and female rates multiplied by 103% with a 3 year
set-forward for both males and females. The rates
are projected on a fully generational basis with scale
BB to account for future mortality improvements
subject to the 3% floor.

* The discount rate was based on the Fidelity Index's "20-Year Municipal GO AA Index" rate as of
December 31, 2018.
Note: The actuarial Assumptions used in the December 3, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2014.

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability
Total OPEB Liability-December 31, 2017
Changes for the year
Service Cost
Interest on Total OPEB Liability
Changes of Benefit Terms
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience
Changes in Assumptions or Other Inputs
Benefit Payments
Net Changes
Total OPEB Liability-December 31, 2018
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Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Change in the Discount Rate
The following presents the Total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City’s total OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.71%) or
1-percentage-point higher (4.71%) than the current discount rate:

Total OPEB Liability

1% Decrease in
Discount Rate (2.71%)
$
23,021

Current
Discount Rate (3.71%)
$
18,597

1% Increase in
Discount Rate (4.71%)
$
15,317

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
OPEB
For the year ended September 30, 2019, the City recognized OPEB expense of $1,715.
At September 30, 2019, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred
Outflows of Resources
Differences between expected and actual
experience

$

196

Changes in assumptions and other inputs
Contributions made subsequent to
measurement date
Total deferrred outflow of resources, net

Deferred
Inflows of Resources
$

-

-

94

419
521

94

The $419 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for
the year ending September 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
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Net Deferred
Outflows
(Inflows) of
Resources
2019
$
47
2020
47
2021
47
2022
47
2023
47
Thereafter
(133)
Total
$
102

F.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In preparing these financial statements, the City has evaluated events and transactions for potential
recognition or disclosure through September 7, 2020 the date the financial statements were available to
be issued. No change to the financial statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019 was
deemed necessary as a result of this evaluation.
The COVID-19 outbreak in the United States has caused business disruption through mandated and
voluntary closings of businesses. While the disruption is currently expected to be temporary, there is
considerable uncertainty around the duration of the closings. However, the related financial impact on
the City and the duration cannot be estimated at this time.
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Budget Amounts
Original
Final
REVENUE
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Franchise and other taxes
Fines & other law enforcement
Charges for services
Interest earned
Payment in lieu of taxes
Total Revenue

$ 212,732
80,000
51,500
751,141
3,050
7,000
125,000
1,230,423

$ 212,732
80,000
51,500
751,141
3,050
7,000
125,000
1,230,423

239,484
650,054
266,385
174,500

239,484
650,054
266,385
174,500

355,494
540,356
194,758
30,146

1,330,423

1,330,423

1,120,754

209,669

EXPENDITURES
General government
Public safety
Public works
Capital outlays
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Total Expenditures
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from legal settlement
Contributions and grants
Fund appropriations
Other
Total other financing sources (uses)
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES

Actual
$

206,519
105,469
56,135
794,880
618
9,383
125,000
1,298,004

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)
$

(6,213)
25,469
4,635
43,739
(2,432)
2,383
67,581

(116,010)
109,698
71,627
144,354

(100,000)

(100,000)

177,250

277,250

100,000
100,000

100,000
100,000

445,000
445,000

445,000
(100,000)
345,000

$

-

$

-

$

622,250

The accompanying note is an integral part of the Required Supplementary Information.
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For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

1. Basis of Presentation:
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current
period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this
purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60
days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when
a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to capital outlays are recorded when
payment is made.

2. Budget Highlights:
Final budget compared to actual results reflects a variance of $277,250 where actual
expenses were lower than budgeted and actual revenues were higher than budgeted.
The overall favorable budget variance of $622,250 was primarily attributable to the
proceeds from the Charles Street legal settlement and an increase in sales taxes and
fines revenue and the effect of underbudgeted expenses in Public Safety, Public
Works and Capital Outlays. The overbudget amount in general government was from
legal expenses associated with the legal settlement income. Fund appropriations
reflects a negative variance as it refers to the use of money market funds on hand with
no actual current revenue to record. Various other components of revenue and
expenses had an off-setting effect.
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Measurement Dates
December 31
2014

December 31
2015

December 31
2016

December 31
2017

$

$

$

$

December 31
2018

Total Pension Liability
Service cost
Interest (on the Total Pension Liability)
Changes of benefit terms
Difference between expected and actual experience
Change of assumptions
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
contributions
Net Change in Pension Liability

(8,325)
29,113

Total Pension Liability - Beginning
Total Pension Liability - Ending (a)

16,149
20,557
732
-

18,991
22,521
548
17,535
(13,291)
46,304

289,760

21,662
25,187
3,658
(5,743)
44,764

318,873

21,173
27,986
2,433
-

$

(11,828)
39,764

365,177

21,473
30,860
(4,458)
(6,518)
41,357

409,941

449,705

$

318,873

$

365,177

$

409,941

$

449,705

$

$

13,696
14,063
8,683

$

15,850
14,953
265

$

17,848
16,022
13,357

$

22,204
17,020
33,138

$

491,062

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - Employer
Contributions - Employee
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
contributions
Administrative expense
Other
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position

(8,325)
(91)
(7)
28,019

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning

(13,291)
(162)
(7)
17,608

151,674

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)
Net Pension Liability - Ending (a) - (b)
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
of Total Pension Liability

$
$

Covered Employee Payroll
Net Pension Liability as a Percentage
of Covered Employee Payroll

$

179,693
139,180

179,693
$
$

56.35%
281,268
49.48%

(5,743)
(151)
(8)
41,325

197,301
167,876

197,301
$
$

54.03%
$

299,065

(11,828)
(171)
(9)
60,354

238,626
171,315
58.21%

$

56.13%

See accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.
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320,439
53.46%

(6,518)
(173)
(10)
23,048

238,626
$
$

298,980
150,725

298,980
$
$

66.48%
$

340,409
44.28%

21,433
17,289
(8,973)

322,028
169,034
65.58%

$

345,773
48.89%

CITY OF RIESEL, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS - EMPLOYEES' PENSION PLAN
Fiscal Years Ended

September 30

September 30

September 30

September 30

2015

2016

2017

2018

September 30
2019

Actuarially determined contribution
Contributions in relation to the
actuarially determined contribution
Contribution deficiency (excess)

$

15,203

$

17,991

$

21,358

$

21,985

$

21,365

$
$

15,203
-

$
$

17,991
-

$
$

21,358
-

$
$

21,985
-

$
$

21,365
-

Covered employee payroll
Contributions as a percentage of covered
employee payroll

$

293,122

$

327,034

$

337,541

$

350,117

5.19%

5.50%

6.33%

6.28%

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
Valuation Date:
Notes

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated
as of December 31 and become effective in January, 13 months later.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:
Actuarial cost method

Entry age normal

Amortization method

Level percentage of payroll, Closed

Remaining amortization period

12 years

Asset valuation method

10 year smoothed market; 15% soft corridor

Inflation

2.5%

Salary increases

3.5% to 10.5% including inflation

Investment rate of return

6.75%

Retirement age

Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the City's
plan of benefits. Last updated for the 2015 valuation pursuant to
an experience study of the period 2010-2014.

Mortality

RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment
with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103%
and projected on a fully generational basis with scale BB.

Other Information:
Notes

There were no benefit changes during the year.

See accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.
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$ 354,510
6.03%

CITY OF RIESEL, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
Measurement Dates

December 31,
2017

December 31,
2018

$

$

Total OPEB liability
Service cost
Interest (on the Total OPEB Liability)
Changes of benefit terms
Difference between expected and actual experience
Change in assumptions or other inputs
Benefit payments**
Net Change in OPEB Liability

511
613
1,729
(68)
2,785

Total OPEB Liability - Beginning

15,987

622
631
225
(1,584)
(69)
(175)
18,772

Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a)

$

18,772

$

18,597

Covered Employee Payroll
Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage
of Covered Employee Payroll

$

340,409

$

345,773

5.51%

* Membership counts for inactive employees currently receiving or entitled to but not yet receiving benefits will
differ from GASB 68 as they include only those eligible for a SDBF benefit (i.e. excludes beneficiaries, non-vested
terminations due a refund, etc.).

** Due to the SDBF being considered an unfunded OPEB plan under GASB 75, benefit payments are
treated as being equal to the employer's yearly contributions for retirees.

See accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.
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5.38%

CITY OF RIESEL, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS-OPEB-SUPPLEMENTAL DEATH
BENEFIT FUND
Fiscal Years Ended

Actuarially determined contribution
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution
Contribution deficiency (excess)
Covered employee payroll
Contributions as a percentage of covered
employee payroll

September 30,
2018
$
625

September 30,
2019
$
524

$
$

625
-

$
$

524
-

$

350,117

$

350,117

0.18%

0.15%

Notes to Schedule:
Inflation
Salary Increases
Discount Rate*
Retiree's Share of Benefit-Related Costs
Administrative Expenses

Mortality Rates-Service Retirees

Mortality Rates-Disabled Retirees

2.50%
3.5% to 10.5% including inflation
3.71%
$
All administrative expenses are paid through the
Pension Trust and accounted for under reporting
requirements under GASB Statement No. 68.
RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar
Adjustment with male rates multiplied by 109%
and female rates multiplied by 103% and projected
on a fully generational basis with scale BB.
RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar
Adjustment with male rates multiplied by 109%
and female rates multiplied by 103% with a 3 year
set-forward for both males and females. The rates
are projected on a fully generational basis with scale
BB to account for future mortality improvements
subject to the 3% floor.

*the discount rate was based on the Fidelity Index's "20-Year Municipal GO AA Index" rate as of December
31, 2018.
Note: The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2018 valuation were based on the results of
an actuarial experience study for the period December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2014.

See accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.
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Fleet Tracking
Why use GPS fleet tracking?
Whether you have a fleet of two or two thousand vehicles, you need an easy way to monitor
where each vehicle is, and how it's being used
Every company faces different challenges and has different reasons for considering GPS
tracking. However, we do hear a lot of the same things. Once your employee walks out the door
and steps into their vehicle, you no longer know exactly what they are doing for the rest of their
day. It’s one thing to glance over to see if the person is at their desk or not, but when they are in
the field, you lose an element of control.
GPS fleet tracking means you no longer need to call drivers to find out where they are, or worry
about how to provide evidence to a customer that a driver was actually there. Our web-based
software allows you to easily follow your vehicles turn by turn, gauge how long they have
stopped in a particular location, and view past travel history.
In addition, our GPS tracking technology enables you to monitor unsafe or inappropriate driving
behavior, helping you to ensure your employees are safe and accidents are minimized. You can
also set up email or text alerts to notify you if employees leave early, make unauthorized stops or
take extended breaks.
By using GPS tracking, you can eliminate unauthorized stops, track employees going home early
or during the day, taking extended lunch breaks, and not actually being where they say they are.
If you ever have problems with missed stops, incomplete jobs or side jobs, this is a great solution
to keep on top of what’s actually happening.
With all time stamps and history stored for three years as standard, GPS tracking puts business
owners, dispatchers, service managers and operations in the driver’s seat and in control. You
don’t have to repeatedly call employees to find out where they are, who is closest, how long until
they are done or if they are free. You no longer have to worry about how to prove to a customer
that your company was actually there. You can just pull vehicles up on a map, view history, run
reports and set alerts to automate the majority of your tracking workload.

Once these systems go in, they pay for themselves. One hour of overtime or time spent not
working, pays for more than a month of service. Most businesses save significantly more than
this. GPS tracking pays for itself in saved time locating employees, more production, safer
driving, less unauthorized miles driven and faster dispatching, which means you can arrive at a
customer sooner.
By automating your fleet management with One Step GPS, you can save time, increase your
employees’ productivity, enhance driver safety and provide better service to your customers.

How does GPS tracking work?
Global Positioning System (or GPS) refers to the satellites orbiting the Earth that beam
down signals that can be picked up by suitable devices. Your smartphone uses these signals
to determine your location, for example.
Once installed, the GPS tracker continuously receives GPS coordinates from these satellites. It
also receives information such as the position of the vehicle, speed, location and engine status. It
will then relay the data via cell towers into our servers. You can then log on to the internet via a
desktop computer or mobile device and see exactly where your vehicle is located.
Our GPS trackers have strong receivers that are accurate to approximately 6 ft., meaning you can
even pinpoint parking spots.
The devices update between every 10-60 seconds while the vehicle is moving. With our custom
algorithms, we deploy multiple techniques to conserve data while keeping the GPS tracking as
accurate as possible.
The details of our algorithm are not made public, but for example, if the person is driving 5mph,
you don’t need to know that they have moved only 35 feet, less than a block every 10 seconds.
However, regular city driving sees significantly faster update times, to provide as close as
possible to turn-by-turn tracking. By doing this we can spend less on data and can pass the
saving onto you and your business. You can thank our engineers!

How do I install a One Step GPS tracker?
Our GPS trackers can either be plugged in or hardwired into a vehicle, depending on your
requirements.
The plug in device can simply be plugged underneath the vehicle’s dashboard in the onboard
diagnostics (OBDII) port. This is the same plug that mechanics use to find out what is wrong
with a vehicle. Once it’s plugged in, you will never need to charge it and if it’s removed you will
be notified by text or email. Our product plugs into all 1996 and newer vehicles.
The plug in device can also be hidden several ways for a more discreet installation. Speak to
your One Step GPS sales representative for more information.

The other option is to hardwire the device inside the vehicle, normally under the dashboard. It
gets connected by three wires: Constant power, Ground and Ignition/Accessory. Once installed,
the device will never need to be charged and is a great tamper-free solution.
Our trackers are designed to withstand the impact of daily, year-round travel and are covered by
a Lifetime Device Warranty as long as you are using our service.
Request a free demo

Do I need to purchase a data plan?
Each device comes with its own built in data plan that you do not have to pay extra for.
The One Step GPS data plan uses AT&T, T-Mobile and many regional carriers, depending on
which provider has a stronger signal in your area at the time. You do not have to have the same
cell phone provider as our GPS as this only gets the data from the GPS device to our servers.
When the GPS trackers are in an area without cell service, the device will still have access to the
GPS satellites and will store approximately 16 hours of data. Once it reconnects to the cell
network, it will upload the activity that occurred during the time it was out of range. Therefore, a
lack of cell service only results in a loss of real-time tracking and normally only for short periods
of time.

How much does it cost?
We've spent an amazing amount of time and effort to offer a premium product at this low
price. These are premium GPS tracking devices, from top manufacturers. Our pricing is
unheard of in the GPS tracking industry - $13.95 per month with NO contract required.
Simply pay first month and last month at sign up, plus an activation fee of $20 or less, depending
on the number of devices.
If, for any reason, you find the service is no longer a fit for your company, you can cancel with
NO penalties*.
We're so confident that you will find this product invaluable, that we offer a 100 day, full money
back guarantee.
*Device must be returned at end of subscription term.

One Step GPS: Transforming the GPS tracking industry, one step at a time

